

## CHAPTER 413

---

**HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT**


---

## SENATE BILL 24-086

BY SENATOR(S) Rich and Michaelson Jenet, Buckner, Cutter, Will, Winter F., Bridges, Coleman, Exum, Fields, Gardner, Ginal, Hansen, Hinrichsen, Jaquez Lewis, Kirkmeyer, Kolker, Marchman, Mullica, Priola, Roberts, Zenzinger, Fenberg; also REPRESENTATIVE(S) Bird and Weinberg, Amabile, Bacon, Boesenecker, Brown, Clifford, Daugherty, Duran, English, Garcia, Hamrick, Herod, Jodeh, Joseph, Kipp, Lieder, Lindsay, Lukens, Ortiz, Pugliese, Ricks, Sirota, Snyder, Story, Vigil, Winter T., Woodrow, Young, McCluskie.

## AN ACT

CONCERNING THE BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER PREVENTION AND TREATMENT FUND, AND, IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, MAKING AN APPROPRIATION.

*Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:*

**SECTION 1.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 25-4-1503, **amend** (1) as follows:

**25-4-1503. Fund created.** (1) There is ~~hereby~~ established in the state treasury a fund to be known as the breast cancer screening fund, which ~~shall be~~ is subject to annual appropriation to the department for the purposes of this part 15. The fund shall be credited with such appropriations as the general assembly may make from the general fund for the purposes of this part 15, ~~as well as any moneys~~ MONEY received by the department pursuant to section 25-4-1505 (2) and (4), AND MONEY TRANSFERRED TO THE FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 25.5-5-308 (9)(h). In accordance with section 24-36-114, ~~C.R.S.~~; all interest derived from the deposit and investment of ~~this~~ THE fund ~~shall be~~ IS credited to the general fund.

**SECTION 2.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 25.5-5-308, **amend** (8)(a)(I); **repeal** (8)(b.5); and **add** (9)(h) as follows:

**25.5-5-308. Breast and cervical cancer prevention and treatment program - creation - legislative declaration - definitions - funds - repeal.** (8) (a) (I) There is ~~hereby~~ created in the state treasury the breast and cervical cancer prevention and treatment fund, referred to in this subsection (8) as the "fund". The fund ~~shall consist of any moneys credited thereto~~ CONSISTS OF MONEY CREDITED TO THE FUND pursuant to section 24-22-115 (1); ~~C.R.S.~~; any gifts, grants, and donations; any

---

*Capital letters or bold & italic numbers indicate new material added to existing law; dashes through words or numbers indicate deletions from existing law and such material is not part of the act.*

~~moneys~~ MONEY appropriated ~~thereto~~ OR TRANSFERRED TO THE FUND by the general assembly; and ~~moneys credited thereto~~ MONEY CREDITED TO THE FUND pursuant to section 42-3-217.5 (3)(c), C.R.S. Except as provided for in paragraph (b.5) of this subsection (8); All ~~moneys~~ MONEY credited to the fund and all interest and income earned on the ~~moneys~~ MONEY in the fund shall remain REMAINS in the fund for the purposes set forth in this section. Any unexpended and unencumbered ~~moneys~~ MONEY remaining in the fund at the end of a fiscal year shall remain REMAINS in the fund and shall not be credited or transferred to the general fund or another fund. The state department is encouraged to secure private gifts, grants, and donations to fund the state costs of the breast and cervical cancer prevention and treatment program.

~~(b.5) Until section 24-30-2204.5 is repealed, the state treasurer shall transfer any interest or income earned on moneys in the fund to the disability support fund, created in section 24-30-2205.5.~~

(9)(h) FOR THE 2024-25, 2025-26, AND 2026-27 STATE FISCAL YEARS, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS FROM THE FUND TO THE BREAST CANCER SCREENING FUND CREATED IN SECTION 25-4-1503.

**SECTION 3.** In Colorado Revised Statutes, 24-30-2205.5, **amend** (1) as follows:

**24-30-2205.5. Disability support fund.** (1) There is ~~hereby~~ created in the state treasury the disability support fund, which ~~shall consist~~ CONSISTS of ~~money transferred to the fund in accordance with section 25.5-5-308 (8), C.R.S., from the sale of registration numbers under this part 22, any~~ money that may be appropriated to the fund by the general assembly and any gifts, grants, or donations received by the department of personnel for the purpose of implementing this part 22.

**SECTION 4. Appropriation.** For the 2024-25 state fiscal year, \$500,000 is appropriated to the department of public health and environment for use by the prevention services division. This appropriation is from the breast cancer screening fund created in section 25-4-1503, C.R.S. To implement this act, the department may use this appropriation for breast and cervical cancer screening program.

**SECTION 5. Safety clause.** The general assembly finds, determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety or for appropriations for the support and maintenance of the departments of the state and state institutions.

Approved: June 5, 2024